








A Stated Meeting of the Synod of Lakes and Prairies was held October 6 and 7, 2024, via Zoom. 

Jeff Dickinson, Ruling Elder (RE) from the Presbytery of Missouri River Valley, and Lisa 
Johnson, Teaching Elder (TE) from the Presbytery of the Twin Cities Area, Moderator and Vice-
Moderator, respectively, were both re-elected to serve another term in their respective positions.
Jeff moderated this meeting with the assistance of former Moderator, Scott Prouty (TE), from MN 
Valleys.

Two new policies were adopted by the Synod. The Synod established a process for the election of 
members at large commissioners per G-3.0401 and elected Carolyn Grice (TE), Missouri River 
Valley, as the first “at large” member. Also a new Statement and Policy on Restorative Actions 
was adopted.

The Synod of Lakes and Prairies acknowledges the racial injustices endured 
by Afro-Americans and people Indigenous to US lands, along with the 
economic repercussions resulting from their lack of reparations. Recognizing 
its predominantly white historical composition, the Synod also acknowledges 
that it has been sheltered from the economic consequences of those injustices. 

As a response to the existing inequalities and to advocate for national 
Reparations, the Synod pledges to allocate a proportional amount of wealth it 
receives from future undesignated bequests and property transfers for 
surrender to Restorative Actions trusts or organizations that benefit Afro 
American and Indigenous communities. Surrenders will be proportionate to 
prevailing rates by which average white household wealth in the US exceed 
parity levels of wealth across white, Afro American, and Indigenous 
households (currently estimated to represent 15% of average white household 
wealth). 

Update on Board of Pension overture to General Assembly: The overture was amended and 
passed by the General Assembly with 92% supporting the overture. The General Assembly 
discussion can be found here https://youtu.be/MF3WsTN8P5E. The Steering Committee has 
approved a task force to address the cost of medical benefits in small membership churches 
particularly those under 150 members and respond to the consequences of the changes in the 
medical plan from the Board of Pensions. If you are interested in serving on this task force, please 
let Synod Moderator Jeff Dickinson know.

Members of the Restorative Actions Team provided educational information about the Wealth Gap 
in the United States and some of the history of Reparations around the world. Commissioners 
discussed the the role of the Church in race relationships and Biblical understandings that impact 
their own understandings. restorativeactions.org. 

                                             Pictured are: Milissa Carter, Sarah Moore-Nokes and Jim Koon

René Myers - rene.myers@pcusa.org shared an update on the special offerings 
and other programs which the Unifying Budget of the General Assembly 
supports. She also talked about the changes to the special offerings which will 
occur in 2026 when the denomination will move from four annual offerings to 
three. Rene reminded us that as our Ministry Engagement Advisor she can tell 
you about the various ministries of the Presbyterian Mission Agency and Office 

of the General Assembly, and direct you to resources to help your committee, church or presbytery.

Sy
no

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
Su

m
m

ar
y

Oc
to

be
r 6

-7
, 2

02
5

Website
lakesandprairies.org



Sandra Duverge - sandra.duverge@pcusa.org, Associate, Financial Aid for Service. With the board of 
Pensions the Financial Aid for Service office have partnered with PeopleJoy to provide personal 
student loan coaches to church leaders, volunteers, church staff and those serving on sessions. Visit 
the Student Loan Assistance website page for information and to apply.

Informational Flyers:
Public Service Loan Forgiveness 2024 Webinars Path to Public Service Loan Forgiveness
Student Loan Forgiveness Common Misconceptions

Committee Highlights
Communications Committee
There will be a Synod Sunday in February 2025 for which a short video and bulletin insert will be shared with all 
congregations. There is planning for a March Face-to-Face event to give Pastor Nominating Committees and candidates an 
opportunity to meet online to see if there is a potential match.

Finance Committee
The Treasurer reported that in 2024 the Synod projects that it will provide services and support to presbyteries, churches, 
camps, and regional and national missions estimated at a rate of $1.28 per dollar received in per capita and shard mission 
receipts. Per Capita for the Synod for 2025 will remain the same at $5.50. The Assembly approved the 2025 budget.

Personnel Committee
The committee is working on clarifying personnel policies.

Committee on Racial Equity Ministries 
CREM is receiving applications for the Racial Equity Student Scholarships and will award these soon. They are also working 
with the Strategic Service and Witness Committee on a Synod Anti-Racism Policy.

Strategic Service and Witness Committee
In addition to continuing support of tribal colleges and institutional partners, the committee has supported activities with 
the Minnesota Council of Churches and other Matthews 25 initiatives. Their other priorities include supporting camps and 
conference centers as well as indigenous educational institutions.

Transforming Communities/Vital Leadership Committee
The TCVL committee announced its sponsorship of a Sankofa Pilgrimage: Learning from the Past to Create a Better Future 
to Tennessee, Mississippi, and Alabama October 16-20, 2024. In addition to supporting Synod School, the Leadership 
Summit and the Art of Transitional Leadership classes, the committee will be developing cohorts to provide support and 
fellowship for pastoral leaders in 2025.

In addition to these six standing committees, reports were received from staff members, the Committee on Representation, 
the Committee on Self-Development of People, the Synod School Committee, the Restorative Actions Team, the 
Presbyterian Women, and the Synod Nominating Committee.

Commissioners completing a term were recognized. We had a moment of silence in memory of Marcy Campbell (TE) from 
the Presbytery of Des Moines.

The meeting ended with worship. Rev. Phillip Romine, a member of the Restorative Actions Team,
gave the sermon.

Synod Meetings for 2025
April 27-29, Mount Olivet Retreat and Conference Center

September 28-29, Zoom.



PRESBYTERY OF DES MOINES
MINUTES OF THE 533rd STATED MEETING

MAY 14, 2024

The 533RD Stated Meeting of the Presbytery of Des Moines was called to order by Moderator Linda Curtis-
Stolper at 9:30 a.m. on May 14, 2024.  The meeting was held at First Presbyterian Church, Oskaloosa, Iowa and 
via videoconferencing using the Zoom platform.

FORMATION OF THE ROLL
The following commissioners and members were registered for this meeting (Present, Absent, Excused):

CHURCH MINISTER P/A/E COMMISSIONER
Adair First Bob Zirkelbach A A
Allerton United Melanie Halferty A A
Ankeny Eric Pasanchin P Lloyd Reeder

Ronald Faerber
Ankeny (PA) Sue Tomlinson P -----
Atlantic First United Rachelle McCalla P -----
Audubon First Sheryl Puderbaugh P Mary Klever
Bedford United Vacant ----- A
Brooklyn First Vacant ----- Marilyn Miller
Carlisle Scotch Ridge Christopher (Kip) Harris P A
Centerville First Vacant ----- A
Chariton First Vacant ----- A
Clive Heartland P. Alex Thornburg P Kathy Bassett
Clive Heartland Judy Winkelpleck A -----
Corning First Jessica Paulsen P Jackie Butcher
Creston First Cynthia Ripperger A Stephanie Anderson

Jim Norman
Creston Platte Center Dolores Doench A A
Dallas Center First (2) Vacant ----- Carolyn Rogers
Dallas Center First Vacant P Nancy Lister-Settle
Deep River United Michelle Williamson A A
Des Moines Central (4) Wallace Bubar A Susan Stroope

Joanne Page
Connie Klug

Des Moines Douglas Avenue Patricia Summers A A
Des Moines Douglas Avenue Val Smith A A
Des Moines First Arabic Ekram Kachu A A
Des Moines Fort Des Moines Vacant ----- A
Des Moines Union Park Doug Basler A A
Des Moines Westminster (4) Scott Paczkowski P Roxanne Neary
Des Moines Westminster William Ekhardt P -----
Des Moines Westminster (PA) Meghan Davis-Brass P -----
Des Moines Westminster Jan Scott P -----
Dexter First Robert Waldron P -----

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 1 of 45



Diagonal United Rodney Glazebrook A A
Earlham First Robert Waldron P Frank Smith
Gibson First Vacant ----- A
Grimes First Doug Basler A Cyndy Bolsenga
Grinnell First Kirsten Klepfer A Char Ewan
Guthrie Center First Jolene James P Gail Shook
Hartford Community United Kristin Pike P A
Indianola Trinity United (3) Erica MacCreaigh P Margaret Blair
Indianola Trinity United ----- Barb Yearous
Indianola Trinity United ----- Juanita Ott
Johnston St. Paul William O’Connell P Patti Schraeder
Johnston St. Paul Randal Lubbers A -----
Knoxville First Ann Johnson P A
Lenox United Tim Maxa P Vera Bradley

Rebecca Donaldson
LeRoy First (United Trinity Parish) Donna Murphy-Ceradsky P A
Lucas First Vacant ----- A
Malcom First United Vacant ----- A
Monroe Ann Johnson P A
Mount Ayr United Baptist Mary Jo Dean P A
Newton First (2) Linda Curtis-Stolper P Mickey Van Baale
Newton United Donald Freeman A A
Oskaloosa First Amy McGriff P Marilyn Vatter
Ottumwa First William Hornback A A
Ottumwa Westminster Vacant ----- A
Perry First Lynne Hanna P Cindy Jafvert
Sharpsburg Tim Maxa P A
Sigourney First Vacant ----- Irene Cassens
West Des Moines Covenant Nathan Williams P Pam Reese
West Des Moines Covenant (PA) Marcy Campbell A Carol Brase
Windsor Heights Windsor (2) Shamaine Chambers King P Angie King
Windsor Heights Windsor Cindy Ray P -----
Winterset First United David Endriss P Paul Millhollin

OTHER PRESBYTERY MEMBERS STATUS P/A/E
Kim Alten Retired E
Kenneth Arentson Retired E
Jay Basler Retired E
John Beran Retired E
Ross Blount Retired E
Peter Brantner Retired E
Tom Conrey Retired E
Carl Cooper Retired E
Hans Cornelder Retired P
Jack DePond Retired P

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 2 of 45



Donald R. Elly Retired E
Barb Gaddis Retired E
Bruce Giese Retired E
John Gilmore Retired E
Nancy Gorsuch Retired E
Robert Houser Retired E
P. Calvin Hsu Retired E
Claude Jones Retired E
Dick Kiefer Retired E
David Klanderman Retired E
Bill LeMosy Retired E
Jeff Means Retired E
Barbara Nish Retired E
Dale O’Connell Retired E
Linda O’Connell Retired E
Craig Palmer Retired E
Nancy Profit Retired E
John Reynolds, Jr. Retired E
Sarai Schnucker Rice Retired P
Kenneth Rummer Retired P
Elizabeth (Betty) Sandy Retired E
Janette Scott Retired E
Greg Smith Retired E
Kenneth Stuber Retired E
Pat Summers Retired E
Barbara Tooker Todd Retired P
Ronald Van Heukelom Retired E
Erasmo Velez Retired E

AT-LARGE AND VALIDATED 
MINISTRY
Peter Brantner At-Large A
Maricarmen Campos Castro At-Large A
James Koopman At-Large A
Michelle Leaverton At-Large A
Za Thawng Lian Validated Ministry A
Ray McCalla Validated Ministry A
Beverly Modlin Validated Ministry A
Jessica Wietzke Validated Ministry A
Ane Fitzgerald Approved to Labor Outside the Presbytery P
Janae Martinez Approved to Labor Outside the Presbytery P
John McElroy Approved to Labor Outside the Presbytery A

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 3 of 45



COMMITTEE MEMBERS COMMITTEE
Larry Smith Presbytery Worship Committee
Sharon Falck Presbytery Women Moderator
Jane Wood Leadership Council
Lisa Whitmarsh Peterson Commission on Ministry
Polk Davison Commission on Ministry
Nate Boulton Leadership Council

CORRESPONDING MEMBERS
Brad Braley Presbytery of North Central Iowa
Kyle Nolan Presbytery Foundation

VISITORS – NAME CHURCH
Andy Anderson Des Moines Union Park
Ann McGowan West Des Moines Covenant
Alan Babb Ottumwa First
Will Reece Ottumwa First
Misty Poush Grinnell First
Janice Logan Grinnell First

PRESBYTERY STAFF
Administrative Executive & Stated Clerk Annika Lister Stroope
Mission Executive Amgad Beblawi
Pastor to the Presbyteries Ian McMullen
Office Manager Jeannie Stolee
Communications Associate Laura Schieber

TE: Teaching Elder (Minister of the Word and Sacrament)
RE: Ruling Elder
CRE: Commissioned Ruling Elder
M/S/C: Moved, seconded, and carried

The Moderator welcomed everyone in person and on Zoom and extended appreciation to 
Oskaloosa for hosting the meeting. She then led the Presbytery in prayer. 

Land Acknowledgment – Linda Curtis-Stolper shared details of the land where the church is 
situated. 

First human inhabitants of area – Baxoje (BACK-so-je), familiarly Ioway tribe
Owaakilwaki (o-wah-KEEL-wa-ki), familiarly Sauk tribe

Meskwahki (muh-SKWAA-kee), familiarly Fox tribe
1803 – Louisiana Purchase

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 4 of 45



1824 – Baxoje Chief Mahaska (White Cloud) and other chiefs met Pres. Monroe in 
Washington DC

Chief Mahaska given medal, treaty signed that ceded all Ioway lands to US for 
payment to tribe of $500 in cash or merchandise, $500/yr. to be paid for following 10 
years – total $5500 for territory between Missouri and Mississippi Rivers

Chief Mahaska greatly impressed by Pres. Monroe, worked for peace rest of life.
1844 – Mahaska County platted, named after Chief Mahaska
1853 – Oskaloosa incorporated as county seat, named for Creek Princess Ouscaloosa 
(Last of the Beautiful)
Particularly from 1870s on, coal mining was major business in area.

1883 – 38 mines in area, annual output over one million tons/year - #1 in counties 
of Iowa

important supporting employer - Transcontinental railroad transported coal.
1873 – William Penn College established, originally named Penn Academy
1872 or 1882 – First Presbyterian Oskaloosa constructed.

Remodeled 1908-1910
Pipe organ installed 1914
South entry room added 1985
Renovations to accommodate ADA requirements were completed earlier this 

year!

Amy McGriff extended a welcome to Oskaloosa First Presbyterian Church.  

Administrative Executive and Stated Clerk TE Annika Lister Stroope gave an orientation to the 
hybrid meeting for in-person and Zoom attendance. It is necessary for all speakers to use a 
microphone so those joining via Zoom can hear all communication. Voting needs to allow extra 
time for the Zoom votes to be collected. 

The moderator confirmed a quorum. 

First time commissioners were introduced from Sigourney, Winterset, Perry, Covenant,
and Indianola.

Approved absences were received in the office. 

Rev. Brad Braley, Kyle Nolan, and Jim Hitson were seated as corresponding members. 

No new business was introduced.

The Docket was approved by consensus.

The Consent Agenda was approved by consensus, including the Leadership Council report 
(Appendix 1) and the Camping & Youth report (Appendix 2).

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 5 of 45



Approval of February 10, 2024, minutes – the minutes were distributed electronically for review.  
The moderator asked if there were any corrections. Request by TE Jessica Paulsen to strike the 
sentence on page 13 regarding reduction of Nominating Committee members, “There are 
currently 4 (not 5) at-large members and one liaison from Leadership Council.”  Minutes 
approved, as amended.  

Moderator’s Report - As you read in the packet, members of our Leadership Council joined 
members of the Leadership Councils from Prospect Hill Presbytery and North Central Iowa 
Presbytery, as well as members of the Tri-Presbyteries Personnel Commission for a retreat on 
Saturday, April 13. At the halfway point in the seven-year commitment to sharing executive 
leadership among the three presbyteries, this gathering was planned as a time to share 
impressions of what is working well, what needs adjustment, what we have learned to this point 
and how that knowledge might shape our presbyteries and their functions moving forward. I 
want to share a few quotes that I jotted down as various folks reflected on these questions.

One of the goals of adopting the tri-presbytery structure was to encourage churches to become 
more involved in cooperative efforts – mission outreaches, church functions, and so on. The 
comment was that there has not been a lot of success in realizing this goal, with the added 
observation that if restructuring simply means rearranging the chairs, it’s not accomplishing 
much. If the goal is a revitalization of church outreach and life, there needs to be a desire from 
within to actively participate in following God’s leading wherever it takes us, even when it feels 
like we’re not in control of what’s happening or where things are going.

The word “transition” came up frequently throughout the day, in reference to the tri-presbytery 
arrangement, in talking about the separate presbyteries, and in thinking about individual 
churches. I appreciated someone pointing out that all ministry is transitional and that transition is 
not failure because it’s the journey that is important. Abram didn’t know where he was going but 
he believed that God was in charge and that the journey would end in a better place. Do we have 
that faith?

No iron-clad decisions came out of the retreat, but some ideas that seem to have potential for 
increased cooperation and efficiency are being explored. We may be looking to the ways in 
which the other presbyteries organize their committees and their leadership of those committees 
as we struggle to fill committee rosters. Committees that are common to all three presbyteries are 
learning to schedule meetings at a common time so the executive liaison can meet with them all 
at once instead of needing to schedule three separate meetings.

There are very real budgetary concerns, and difficult, probably downright painful, decisions are 
going to need to be made. More discussions will be held, and many more prayers will be offered. 
You’ve all heard it before – many of you have probably said it to or heard it in your 
congregations – “Change is hard. It’s scary to not be in charge, to not know where you’re 
headed, to not be able to envision a positive outcome.” But I am confident you’ve completed the 
statement with some variation of the message on which our faith is built: “Do not let your hearts 
be troubled. Trust in God; trust also in me.” With trust, with prayer, with faith that leads us to 
walk in Jesus’ footsteps, we will be given the insights we need to make the transitions that are 
necessary.

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 6 of 45



TE Alex Thornburg asked if there has been serious talk of combining the three presbyteries. The 
answer is yes, such talks have started, but it will be a long and complicated process. This is one 
of the possibilities under consideration.

Worship with Communion – The service was led by the Presbytery Worship Committee. 
TE Brad Braley presented the sermon. The offering is being sent to Frontera de Cristo, along 
with T-shirts that were donated, as tangible gifts.

Committee on the Promotion of Social Righteousness – TE Brad Braley gave a presentation of 
the February delegation to Frontera de Cristo. The mission works to build relationships and 
understanding across borders. They serve migrants and community members on both sides of the 
border at Agua Prieta, Sonora and Douglas, AZ. Some of the walls in the area are 30 feet high. 
Smuggling humans has become more profitable than drugs. The Migrant Resource Center 
provides food, water, first aid, and phones to those passing through. They have started a coffee 
cooperative which is helping the economy on the Mexico side. This is one of four Presbyterian 
border ministries, and they are celebrating their 40th anniversary this year. (Appendix 3)

Presbyterian Foundation and New Covenant Trust – Kyle Nolan talked about Presbyterian 
Foundation, the oldest faith-based agency (1799). They offer resources such as Vanco, 
StewardshipNavigator.com, churchfla.com, help setting up endowments, customize portfolios, 
offer workshops, and help with legacy giving. 

Jim Hitson discussed FIT, New Covenant Trust, and Project Regineration. They offer a 
discernment process to look at where your church is going and what are the next stages of your 
ministry.  

Both guests were available for further discussion during lunch.   

The meeting was recessed at 11:55 p.m. for lunch.  

The meeting resumed at 12:45 with Announcements.

TE Erica MacCreaigh promoted Synod School, July 21-26.

TE Tim Maxa promoted camp at Wesley Woods for 2nd – 8th graders July 10-13.

Kathy Bassett reported that Central Presbyterian will be sending a delegation to El 
Salvador on July 18th and other churches are welcome to join them. 

Sharon Falck gave a reminder of the PW Churchwide Gathering August 8 – 11.

First Arabic – sewing project – see TE Ekram Kachu for more information.

TE Lynne Hanna recommends a stay at Lakeshore Center during the last two weeks in 
August.

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 7 of 45



TE Nathan Williams asked for prayers for TE Marcy Campbell who has been 
hospitalized and is moving to hospice.

RE Larry Smith reported that TE Bob Cook’s sister-in-law passed away.

Moderator Curtis-Stolper offered prayers for those mentioned in the announcements.

BUSINESS MEETING

COM – RE Polk Davison provided follow-up to the report (Appendix 4). In addition to the 
written report, they approved the Terms of Call for 2024 and approved the list of at-large and 
validated ministries for 2024 on May 2nd.

COM interviewed Paul Millhollin and approved him as a CRE. 

TE Sarai Rice has accepted a position of interim pastor at Des Moines Central.

On behalf of COM, the recommended Terms of Call minimum for 2025 is $59,000. Approved. 

Recognition of ordination anniversaries were noted:  15 years for Lynne Hanna, Cynthia 
Ripperger for 15 years, Barbara Nish for 35 years, Tim Maxa for 40 years, Roger Todd for 
55 years, Bill LeMosy for 55 years.

Nominating Committee – TE Cynthia Ripperger represented the committee on behalf of Sandy 
Wagener. Marcy Campbell was excited to attend GA as a commissioner, but her health issues 
now require an alternate. The committee nominates TE Meghan Davis-Brass as commissioner to 
the 2024 GA. Nomination was unanimously approved.

Staff Reports

RE Amgad Beblawi, Executive for Ministry and Mission, reported that the Living Legacy 
Committee is looking at policies and will bring a draft of proposed changes to the November
meeting. Four members went to Colorado to learn about the Board of Pension changes. 
He is grateful for the commitment of COM. They need two more TEs, there will be two more 
PNCs needed - Dallas Center and Des Moines Central.  

The delegation that went to the US-Mexico border has given 20 presentations so far. 

The Solidarity in Suffering delegation to Israel/Palestine had a total of 35 members nationwide. 
Over half of all buildings in Gaza have been destroyed. They met with the father of an Israeli 
hostage and Palestinian prisoners. Since October 7th, 7,000 more Palestinians have been arrested. 
They were able to visit East Jerusalem and the West Bank. Holy Family Church is helping take 
care of many displaced children. Adults are getting one meal per day to make sure the children 
are fed. Hope is what the churches are trying to provide. What is the witness of the church to 
terrorism and violence? As followers of Christ, we cannot be indifferent. We are not responding 
to events, but to Christ’s call.

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 8 of 45



TE Ian McMullen, Pastor to the Presbyteries, says thank you for ‘boots on the ground ministry.’ 
He recognized and welcomed the new Communications Associate, Laura Schieber.    
Boundaries Training – videos have been made available for sessions to use and they will be 
widely distributed.

Discussed preparation for ministry – CRE. 

Ian proudly presided at his daughter's wedding. 

TE Annika Lister Stroope, Administrative Executive and Stated Clerk, reported on the upcoming 
General Assembly meeting in Salt Lake City. There are four nominations for moderator. 
Attendees have three days of on-line work, prior to GA. There was a question on what overtures 
have been brought forward and Annika recommends viewing those on-line.

Synod – Boundaries Training discussed again. She has been asked if deacons are required to take 
the training. It is not required, but they are encouraged to attend. Each session can make that 
determination. Proof of training needs to be maintained by the clerks of session. 

Committee on Budget and Finance – TE Bill Ekhardt provided the financial report and 
additional details. Current deficit is $140,000; cash on hand is $415,000. In the past four years, 
we have seen a declining membership of 4.5% per year. This matches the average decline for 
other religious groups.

TE Ekhardt moved to accept the financial reports in the packet (Appendix 5).  Approved. 

Personnel Commission – TE Shamaine Chambers King presented the report from the United 
Presbyterians of the Plains (UPP) Personnel Commission (Appendix 6).

Overview of Board of Pensions New Benefits Plan – Presentation by Annika Lister Stroope, 
Amgad Beblawi, Shamaine Chambers King, and Jessica Paulsen. In 2025 congregations will 
have the option to cover only the pastor and not the family for medical coverage. Churches need 
to be careful not offering coverage for family members.

Motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded and approved.  

Moderator adjourned the meeting at 2:46 PM.  Go in peace.  

The following written reports were received and are included as Appendices:

Appendix Page
1........Leadership Council. .....................................................................................
2........Camping & Youth ........................................................................................
3........US/Mexico Border Delegation ..................................................................... 
4........Commission on Ministry..............................................................................
5........January, February and March Financials .................................................
6........Personnel Commission ................................................................................. 

Presbytery Meeting Minutes - May 14, 2024 - 9 of 45



 

 

Leadership Council Report  
DM Presbytery Meeting, 9 November 2024 
 
Presbytery Staffing and Boundaries Task Force 

The leadership councils of the three United Presbyteries of the Plains are 
convening an “Io-Way Forward Task Force” to work specifically on the questions of 
presbytery staffing and boundaries. Des Moines, North Central Iowa, and Prospect Hill 
will be represented. The other Iowa presbyteries (East Iowa, John Knox, and Missouri 
Valley) will be invited to participate if this process fits their missional needs. Des 
Moines’ commissioners to this task force are TE Jessica Paulsen and a ruling elder to be 
named. 

It has been difficult for our leadership councils to do justice to the immediate 
needs of the presbytery as well as the long-term questions in front of us. Much of our 
energy at each monthly meeting has been focused on discerning the future of our shared 
staffing agreement and the long-term needs of our three presbyteries. We met together 
in April and July to look at these questions as a large group.  

We knew that the shared staffing model would spend down all three presbyteries’ 
cash reserves. However, we have found that the amount of deficit spending and the rate 
of membership loss is greater than was expected. A significant proportion of 
congregations in each presbytery are quite unsure about their prospects. Without 
significant changes, our present staffing model and boundaries are not viable in the long 
term.  

The three leadership councils believe that it is time to move forward with changes 
that can sustain viable presbyteries in Iowa. The Io-Way Forward Task Force is charged 
to present recommendations for presbytery staffing, boundaries, and related issues by 
June 30, 2025. The effective date of any changes would be January 1, 2026. The existing 
staffing model would terminate on December 31, 2025. By establishing a clear time 
frame, we are able to provide clarity and predictability for presbytery staff throughout 
this uncertain transition. The Leadership Council on behalf of the Presbytery is 
committed to the current staffing model through the end of 2025. 

 
2025 Presbytery Meeting Dates 

The current bylaws set specific presbytery meeting dates in February, May, 
August, and November. These dates are not always ideal in any particular year, 
especially given that presbytery staff are balancing the calendars of three independent 
presbyteries. An organization’s bylaws do not need to specify meeting dates in such 
detail.  

Motion: Leadership Council moves to revise the bylaws to be less specific about 
meeting dates, as follows:  

Motion: Leadership Council moves the following presbytery meeting dates in 
2025: Tuesday, February 11 on Zoom for action on proposed Book of Order 
amendments; Saturday, February 22; Tuesday, May 20; and Tuesday, November 11. 



 

 

Unless otherwise specified, Presbytery meetings will be in person, at locations to be 
determined by Leadership Council. Virtual access will be observer-only, using the 
livestream platform normally used by the hosting congregation.  

 
New Worshiping Communities Task Force 

The New Worshiping Communities Committee will request to be transformed 
into a task force. Their focus will shift from starting one new worshiping community on 
behalf of the presbytery to supporting congregations within the presbytery to establish 
or maintain new worshiping communities. This function will include sharing in the 
support of First Arabic Presbyterian Church, our newest congregation. The NWC 
Committee/Task Force is working on new Manual of Operations language for this 
change.  

 
Platte Center Dissolution Process 

COM has been notified that the Platte Center congregation has voted to dissolve 
by the end of 2024. With sorrow and gratitude, the Leadership Council has appointed an 
administrative commission to support Platte Center through their dissolution process. 
The AC consists of RE Chuck Erickson, TE Tim Maxa, and RE Pam Deichmann. 

 
Additional Policy Proposals 

LC reviews policies proposed by various committees before they are presented to 
the Presbytery for approval. We concur with the following proposals. The Presbytery as 
a whole has final authority over these.  

1. Living Legacy Fund Policy 
2. Church Dissolution Policy 
3. Per Capita for 2025 
4. 2025 Budget 
 
We want everyone to know who the LC members are and to which committees 

they serve as liaisons. Please contact any of the following as appropriate regarding these 
committees’ work:  

 Camping and Youth: Dotta Hassman 
 Commission on Ministry: Carol Ferrell 
 Living Legacy: Nathan Williams 
 New Worshiping Communities: Ekram Kachu and Nate Boulton 
 Nominating: Linda Curtis-Stolper 
 Preparation for Ministry: David Endriss 
 Presbytery Worship: David Endriss 
 Promotion of Social Righteousness: Ane Fitzgerald 
 Property: Jane Wood 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
TE Nathan Williams  
LC Moderator  
 



1  

Des Moines Presbytery 
Policy on Dissolving Congregations 

Draft 

This statement is intended to clarify the Presbytery of Des Moines’ Policy on Closing 
Churches; specifying the procedures to be followed after the church Session has 
proposed dissolution of their congregation. This policy does not relate to the process by 
which the decision to dissolve is reached; rather it applies only to the procedural 
dissolution of a congregation, after the request to dissolve has been concurred with by 
the Presbytery of Des Moines. 

 
Recognizing that the Church of Jesus Christ cannot be closed or dissolved by human 
action, this policy applies only to congregations, as that term is defined in the Book of 
Order, of the Presbyterian Church (USA) located within the geographic bounds of Des 
Moines Presbytery. 

Authority 

The responsibility and power to dissolve a congregation in consultation with its members 
is granted to Presbytery by the Book of Order, and especially Chapter 4 of the Form of 
Government regarding property held in trust for the mission of the Church. 

The attitude of the Presbytery of Des Moines in this process, from beginning to end, shall 
always be pastoral. 

The Presbytery and sessions of its member congregations understand and act in the spirit 
of the principal that property, real and personal (tangible and intangible), of the 
Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.), of its councils and entities, and of its congregations, is a 
tool for the accomplishment of the mission of Jesus Christ in the world. Regarding 
dissolution of congregations, the Presbytery has exclusive power to determine the use and 
disposition of church property when a property ceases to be used for a particular church, 
and a dissolving church has the right to dispose of church property only as the Presbytery 
directs. 

The procedural dissolution of a congregation will almost always be accomplished 
through an Administrative Commission created by the Presbytery as hereafter provided. 

 
Creation and Appointment of the 

Administrative Commission 

When the session has proposed and the Presbytery has concurred that a congregation is 
to be dissolved, and upon recommendation from the Stated Clerk, in consultation with 
the Moderator and Vice Moderator of Presbytery, with the Moderator of the Commission 
on Ministry and with Presbytery staff, Presbytery will be asked to create an 
Administrative Commission for the congregation and to appoint the Moderator and 
members thereof. The Administrative Commission may ask other individuals, as needed, 
to assist it in its work (e.g., an Elder from the congregation with knowledge of its affairs, 



2  

a member who is knowledgeable about the congregation’s history, individuals to assist 
with a Service of Witness). 

 
In creating the Administrative Commission, Presbytery shall authorize it to act with the 
authority of the Presbytery, by adopting the following resolution, which may be modified, 
from time to time, as the specific circumstances of the congregation in question require: 

 
RESOLVED, That Presbytery of Des Moines appoint an Administrative Commission for 
the (insert name) Presbyterian Church of (insert location), Iowa, to act on 
Presbytery’s behalf, with the power to meet with the Session if the session continues to 
function and members of the congregation, including calling a meeting of the Session 
and/or of the congregation, as necessary, to arrange for the pastoral care of the 
members, publicize the dissolution of the congregation, ascertain the financial status and 
outstanding financial obligations of the congregation , secure the Session records, secure 
the legal rights to all property (real or personal) held by or for the benefit of the 
congregation, dispose of the moveable personal property of the congregation, secure the 
building and property, attend to matters of insurance, dispose of the building and 
grounds (subject to the guidelines established by the Leadership Council) or convey the 
building and grounds to the Iowa Corporation, “The Presbytery of Des Moines of the 
Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)”, recommend to the Presbytery the use of the assets of the 
congregation, plan and conduct a Service of Witness, secure the assistance of other 
individuals, as appropriate, to assist with its work, and generally to do such things and 
take such actions, for, in the name of, and on behalf of the Presbytery of Des Moines as 
shall be reasonably necessary to accomplish the general purpose of this resolution. 

 
As may be necessary, the additional authorization may be included as follows: 

 
If necessary, after a thorough investigation and full opportunity to be heard has been 
accorded to the session if still in place, the administrative commission may assume 
original jurisdiction, or full power and responsibility, as the session by 2/3 vote of 
commission members as guided by the Book of Order, F-3.0206 and G-3.0303e. 

 
Responsibilities and Duties 

of the Administrative Commission 

The Administrative Commission shall be convened by the Moderator soon after its 
creation, and thereafter meet regularly, preferably at least monthly, until its work is 
completed, or it is dissolved by the Presbytery. A Recorder shall be chosen from among 
the members of the Administrative Commission. The Recorder shall keep an accurate 
record of the Commission’s deliberations and actions and shall promptly furnish them to 
the members of the Administrative Commission and to the Stated Clerk of Des Moines 
Presbytery. 

 
In the course of carrying out its duties, the Administrative Commission may remove or 
replace the Session of a congregation or may itself act as the Session thereof; any 
decision so to act shall be made only after consideration of the general pastoral policy of 
Des Moines Presbytery with regard to dissolution of churches, as expressed herein. 



3  

The Administrative Commission shall proceed to address and accomplish the following 
matters, duties and responsibilities, and such other matters as may reasonably arise during 
its work, provided, that they are not contrary to the resolution by which Des Moines 
Presbytery created the Administrative Commission. Before commencing its work, the 
Administrative Commission shall assure itself that the congregation is covered by 
appropriate casualty and liability insurance and shall take necessary steps to see that the 
insurance is maintained in force until the congregation is dissolved and the property is 
added to Des Moines Presbytery’s casualty and liability insurance policy, or the property is 
disposed of. 

 
A. PASTORAL CARE OF REMAINING MEMBERS 

 
 Designate a pastor to be responsible for pastoral care of any remaining members 

until membership is transferred or the congregation is dissolved
 Work with the Session to encourage members to transfer their membership to 

another Presbyterian Church (USA) or to a church of another denomination if that 
is the member’s desire; identify where members wish their membership to be 
transferred; assist as necessary in accomplishing the transfer. A transfer may be 
made at any time before the congregation is dissolved, or it may be made to be effective as 
of the dissolution.

 If a member wishes to transfer membership before the congregation is dissolved or 
as of its dissolution, the Clerk of Session of the congregation will send the letter of 
transfer. If there is no Clerk of Session, the Administrative Commission may 
appoint a Clerk of Session for that purpose or for any other purpose for which a 
Clerk of Session is required.

 As to any member whose membership is not transferred as provided above, the 
member may obtain a letter of transfer for a period of one year after the dissolution 
from the Stated Clerk of Des Moines Presbytery.

 After the dissolution, the Administrative Commission shall certify to the Stated 
Clerk of Des Moines Presbytery a list of members whose membership was not 
transferred, to the best of its knowledge.

B. FINANCIAL STATUS AND OUTSTANDING FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS 

 Obtain a copy of the congregation’s most recent financial statement and conduct a 
financial review of the Treasurer's books.

 Determine location of checking accounts, savings accounts, endowment accounts, 
Sunday School accounts, women's group accounts, and any other financial 
resources.

 Determine if there are any restrictions on the use or disposition of any endowment 
or memorial accounts; if so, determine the source of any such restriction, whether 
imposed by the donor or by the Session, to ascertain whether or not the restrictions 
would follow and thereby restrict the funds once they are transferred to Des Moines 
Presbytery, or elsewhere.

 Close all financial accounts and transfer any balances to the congregation’s 
primary checking account. If there are accounts containing marketable securities 
with fluctuating values, the Administrative Commission should obtain advice and 
counsel from someone with expertise, possibly the Living Legacy Committee, 



4  

before liquidating any such securities.
 Submit new signature card(s) for all accounts with at least two members of the 

Administrative Commission designated as signatories. The Administrative 
Commission may allow the Church Treasurer, if one has been elected and is 
serving, to continue to pay expenses of the ongoing operations, subject to a careful, 
frequent monitoring of all receipts and expenditures by the Administrative 
Commission. In such case, all expenditures should be approved by the 
Administrative Commission before payment. 

 Determine any outstanding debts/obligations and oversee the payment or other 
discharge of those obligations. This includes seeing that all applicable payroll 
taxes are paid, that all payroll tax returns are filed and that any necessary IRS 
Forms 1099 are completed, provided to recipients and filed. If they cannot be filed 
until the end of the year in which the dissolution occurs, arrangements should be 
made with the Stated Clerk of Des Moines Presbytery to see that they are filed 
when appropriate.

 Publish in a local newspaper a public notice in form below, secure an affidavit of 
its publication, and send the affidavit to the Stated Clerk of Des Moines 
Presbytery:

 
The Church of  , IA will cease 
operation on or about (date). Any outstanding debts/financial obligations 
must be submitted in writing to the  Church Administrative 
Commission at 1864 Highway 86, Lakeshore Center At Okoboji, 
Milford, IA 51351 – 7267 by the close of business on (date). 

 
 Oversee the provision of a "statement of contribution" to all current year 

contributors, as necessary.
 If the congregation owns any stocks, bonds, or other financial instruments that are 

not liquidated, accomplish transfer of ownership to Des Moines Presbytery. 
Following the dissolution, transfer all remaining balances to Des Moines 
Presbytery and close all remaining accounts.

C. SESSION/CHURCH RECORDS 

 Locate, collect and catalogue all Session minutes, any registers 
maintained by the congregation, and other financial and legal records.

 Arrange for the Clerk of Session to symbolically hand these to a representative 
of Des Moines Presbytery (the Stated Clerk or designee) at the conclusion of the 
Service of Witness, or deliver them to the office of the Stated Clerk at the
conclusion of the Administrative Commission’s work. 

 Assist, as requested by the Stated Clerk, in transferring the records to the 
Presbyterian Historical Society.

 
D. REAL PROPERTY 

 
 Obtain a copy of the deed or deeds and all related documents (such as the abstract) 

to all real property owned by the congregation. This may require a search of the 



5  

property records at the appropriate county courthouse; generally, the records of the 
county appraisal district will reveal any property held in the name of the 
congregation. However, that may not be the case with regard to non-producing 
mineral interests. It may be necessary to secure a title search from a local 
abstract/title insurance company. If necessary, the Administrative Commission 
may arrange for a current survey of the real property by a Registered Public 
Surveyor. 

 Send a copy of any deed or deeds to the Leadership Council of The 
Presbytery of Des Moines, if and when any property is conveyed to 
“The Presbytery of Des Moines of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)”.

 Review the status of the congregation’s title to any real property to ascertain the 
existence of liens, deed restrictions, or other conditions that affect the use and 
marketability of the property. If the property is subject to outstanding 
indebtedness, determine the status of any such debt – balance, terms, payment 
dates, etc.

 Dispose of the real property of the congregation by cash sale, as provided herein, 
working through a local realtor or otherwise, as the Administrative Commission
deems appropriate. In areas with an active real estate market, a professional 
appraisal should be obtained to know the market value of the property. If such an 
appraisal is obtained, there should be very compelling reasons to justify a sale for 
less than 90% of that appraised value. In other areas, no formal appraisal is 
required, but the Administrative Commission may not sell the property unless the 
sale price is at least 35% of the applicable county assessed value. 

 Any sale shall be by deed without warranty, reserving mineral rights if that can 
be negotiated. Generally, mineral interests that are owned apart from surface 
ownership shall not be sold but shall be conveyed to “The Presbytery of Des 
Moines of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)”.

 In the event there is a legitimate offer to purchase the real property for an amount 
that is less than the values stipulated above, the Administrative Commission may 
recommend approval of that sale, but the decision shall be that of the body of Des 
Moines Presbytery, to be considered by the Leadership Council.

 If the Administrative Commission wishes to donate the property to any person or 
entity, without consideration, it may recommend approval of that gift, but the 
decision shall be that of the body of Des Moines Presbytery, to be considered at 
its next stated meeting.

 If the real property is not otherwise disposed of, the Administrative 
Commission shall transfer title to the property to the “The Presbytery of
Des Moines of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)” In such a case, the 
Leadership Council may list the real property for sale with a local realtor, as it 
determines is appropriate. 

 If the property is not sold, request that the property be listed on the Presbytery’s 
property and liability insurance coverage and follow up to see that this is done. If 
there are any existing insurance policies on the property, cancel them effective as 
of the day after the Service of Witness, after having determined that the coverage 
on the Presbytery’s policy will be effective simultaneously, and follow-up to 
collect any unearned insurance premiums that may be due.

 If appropriate, notify the applicable county assessor that the property is no 
longer used as a church.



6  

E. CIVIL CORPORATION 
 Determine if the congregation has been incorporated, and, if so, obtain a copy 

of all corporate documents. Do not rely solely on the memory of church 
members because the corporate entity may have been disregarded. Check 
with the Iowa Secretary of State or appropriate government office.

 Dissolve the civil corporation according to the requirements of Iowa law.
 Provide the Stated Clerk all corporate records and documents of any civil 

corporation, and copies of the dissolution documents.
 Any dissolution of the civil corporation should occur after the dissolution of the 

congregation.

F. SERVICE OF WITNESS AND ACT OF DISSOLUTION 
 

1. Plan and conduct a worship service celebrating the life and ministry of the 
congregation. Accomplishing this entails, among other things, the 
following: 

 Set the date and the time for the service, allowing ample time for 
the date to be publicized and invitations issued. 

 Decide what special features the service should include. 
 Decide how best to tell the history of the Christian ministry and 

witness through this Presbyterian congregation. 
 Determine whether the celebration of the Lord's Supper would be 

appropriate, and arrange for that celebration, including preparation 
of the elements and designation of elders to serve. 

 Identify a possible preacher and other participants (At least one 
representative from the congregation, at least one representative 
from the Commission and the designated Presbytery staff of 
Des Moines Presbytery (or another Presbytery representative) 
should be included. 

 Identify favorite hymns of congregation members. 
 Consider possibilities for special music (possibilities include a 

church choir; soloists from the congregation, presbytery, or com- 
munity; a community or presbytery choir (ad hoc) and 
instrumentalists). 

 Determine whether an offering will be received at the service and, 
in conjunction with the Session, designate where any offering will 
be directed (generally some local concern such as a hunger pro- 
gram, women's/homeless shelter, Meals on Wheels, etc.). 

 Arrange for ushers, "car parkers", and elders to serve Communion 
(if needed). 

 Prepare bulletins as needed; provide hymnals and Bibles, if needed. 
 Arrange for any needed cleaning of facility before the service. 

 
2. Publicize the Service of Witness. In consultation with the remaining 

congregation members, the Commission should: 
 Ask members to create a "guest list" of relatives, friends, former 

members, etc. whom they wish to invite to the celebration, 



7  

including former ministers as appropriate. 
 Consider having invitations printed and given to members to send 

out (expenses of which should be paid for from the 
congregation’s bank account). If funds are not otherwise available, 
the Stated Clerk can authorize payment from Presbytery funds. 

 Design a flier and write an accompanying letter to be distributed 
to the congregations and members of the Presbytery inviting them 
to the service and send them to Presbytery office with ample time 
for inclusion in the Presbytery’s newsletter. 

 Arrange for local newspaper coverage. 
 Include information in the congregation’s newsletter and on its 

website if possible. 
 

3. Arrange for a reception following the Service of Witness 
 Identify the location for a reception. 
 Decide how the food will be provided (Caterers or members). 
 Determine what financial resources the congregation has to pay for 

the reception and establish a budget. 
 Designate an individual or individuals to take charge of decorating 

and other arrangements. 
 Gather memorabilia to display. 
 Arrange for clean-up of the facilities after the reception. 

 
4. At the conclusion of the Service of Witness, the Commission 

representative may declare, in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ and by 
the authority of Des Moines Presbytery of the Presbyterian Church 
(USA), that the ministry of the congregation of the (insert name of 
congregation) is complete, the congregation is dissolved, and the 
building is vacated. That declaration may be accompanied by a symbolic 
decommissioning of the sanctuary and removal of designated items to 
another location. 

 
G. MOVEABLE PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 Arrange for and accomplish the disposition of all moveable personal property 
belonging to the congregation. This shall include all furnishings, communion 
ware, hymnals, Bibles, Sunday School supplies and materials, pulpit, lectern, 
communion table, pews, computers (after all records are deleted or archived as 
appropriate), pianos, organs, other musical instruments and other items that are not 
fixtures.

 Those items may be given away, sold by the piece, or bids may be received for 
the entire lot of furnishing. It is recommended that at least one appraisal by an 
antiques dealer/estate appraiser be obtained before accepting any bids, if there are 
any items of any market value.

 These decisions should be documented in detail in the Commission minutes. The 
Presbytery stands ready to offer its counsel in the wise, faithful, and legal 
disposition of assets given by Presbyterians over the ages for the mission of Jesus 



8  

Christ. Every reasonable attempt should be made to make the items available for 
other congregations in Des Moines Presbytery in their various ministries.

 In making these decisions, the Administrative Commission shall carefully, 
respectfully and seriously consider any expressed desires by the Session of the 
congregation as to the disposition of these assets, but the decisions are those of the 
Commission.

H. AFTER THE SERVICE OF WITNESS AND DISSOLUTION 
 

After the dissolution of the congregation, in addition to those matters delineated above, 
the Commission shall, as necessary: 

 
 File a change of address with the United States post office, so that all mail directed 

to the congregation will be forwarded to the Presbytery of Des Moines,1864 
Highway 86, Lakeshore Center at Okoboji, Milford, IA 51351 – 7267.

 Ascertain which utilities should remain connected and which may be 
disconnected and make necessary arrangements with the proper companies, 
including having the billing for the utilities transferred to the Presbytery of
Des Moines. It may be necessary to maintain heat during the winter to avoid 
damage. 

 Arrange with the designated Presbytery staff for any ongoing utility payments.
 Arrangements should be made to drain the pipes when the water 

service is discontinued, or when there is no longer any heat in the 
building.

 Secure the building and change the locks, providing keys to the Stated Clerk; 
any stained-glass windows should be protected.

 Remove all signage from the property that identifies the building as a 
Presbyterian Church, remove any cornerstone or removable commemorative 
plaques, check for any time capsule (and remove any contents if applicable) and 
deliver any such memorabilia to the Stated Clerk unless another disposition has 
been decided (e.g., a county historical commission).

 Arrange for lawn and other essential maintenance until the final disposition 
of the property. Often this can be accomplished through the local realtor with 
whom the property is listed if that is done.

I. ULTIMATE DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY AND REMAINING ASSETS 
 

 Net proceeds from the sale of the real property of churches in the Presbytery shall 
be transferred to the Living Legacy Fund unless otherwise approved by 
Presbytery.  

 Congregations hold real property in trust. Presbytery has exclusive power to 
determine the use and disposition of church property when a property ceases to be 
used for a particular church, and a dissolving church has the right to dispose of 
church property only as the Presbytery directs.  

 Churches in ongoing ministry also require Presbytery approval for the sale of real 
property and the determination of the disposition of net proceeds from a sale. 

 Primary consideration will be given to using the assets for future ministry, 



9  

including the development of new congregations and the redevelopment of 
existing congregations; provided, however, some portion of the assets should be 
set aside to defray any expenses that arise from the Presbytery’s continued 
ownership of the property until its final disposition.

 The Presbytery will take seriously but not necessarily be bound by the desires of 
the Session of a congregation in the use of the assets. 

 In its final report to Presbytery, the Administrative Commission, after consultation 
with the Leadership Council, shall make a recommendation to the Presbytery for 
the future use of any assets or funds resulting from the dissolution of the 
congregation and the disposition of its assets.

 At the time of dissolution, the “The Presbytery of Des Moines of the Presbyterian
Church (U.S.A.)” becomes the sole owner of the former congregation’s assets. 
Prior to dissolution, the assets may be transferred from the congregation to the 
Presbytery; 

 Any assets not transferred prior to dissolution shall be transferred by 
the Administrative Commission acting with the authority of the 
Presbytery.

 
Final Duties 

After the Administrative Commission has completed all the duties and responsibilities 
charged to it by the Presbytery it shall prepare a final, detailed report of its actions, 
deliberations and recommendations, which shall be delivered to the Stated Clerk. The 
report should address each item contained in this procedure policy. If there are items that 
have not been completed, generally speaking, the work of the Administrative 
Commission has not been completed and it should continue to work. 

 
At the next ensuing Presbytery meeting thereafter, the report of the Administrative 
Commission, with its recommendations, shall be presented to the body of Presbytery for 
its action. A member of the Administrative Commission shall present an oral report as 
necessary. If the report is accepted, the Administrative Commission shall be discharged. 
The Presbytery may assign it further duties, if necessary, in which case it shall continue 
until those matters are concluded. 



 

 

UPP Personnel Commission Report 
 

Submitted by Shamaine Chambers King, Commission Moderator 
October 22, 2024 

 
 The Personnel Commission is made of members of Prospect Hill, North 

Central Iowa and Des Moines Presbyteries. Currently serving on the 
committee are: 

o PH:  CRE Shari O’Bannon (2024-1), TE TE Jennifer Olson (2025-2), 
TE Kevin Freese (2026-1) 

o NCI:  RE RE Judy Klepfer (2024-2), RE Steve Hulsebus (2025-1), 
TE Kip Murphy  (2026-1) 

o DM:  TE Shamaine Chambers King, Chair (2024-2), RE Dave 
McInally (2025-1), open (2026) 

 The Personnel Commission received, concurs with and strongly 
recommends to the Presbyteries and their respective Councils the 
proposed “Io-way Forward” Task Force and staffing transition plan. 

 The Personnel Commission will meet at Lakeshore Center on October 25 
to complete staff performance reviews, review the year’s activities and 
actions, and begin to plan for 2025. 

 We are finalizing the 2025 UPP budget with a plan to approve the budget 
at our next meeting which will include projected Board of Pension savings 
for 2025. 

 Financials for the Personnel Commission from the latest August and 
September combined reports: 

o Actual revenue and expenses generally on target versus budget, 
with a net positive income of $6,022.57 for the month of August and 
$11,347.93 for the month of September and a positive net income of 
$41,876.78 for the year. 

o Current balance in the UPP checking account is $160,918.39 with 
restricted and allocated liabilities of $40,444.72 and unrestricted 
funds of $90,325.40. 



Approved February 12, 2022. Draft 2024 1 
 

Presbytery of Des Moines  
Living Legacy Fund Policy 

Statement of Purpose 
The Presbytery of Des Moines established the Living Legacy Fund to empower and support the churches 
of the Presbytery in growing the mission of the Church of Jesus Christ.  The Living Legacy Fund has been 
built upon the proceeds of the sale of church properties within the Presbytery and with donations 
directly to the Fund. The Fund therefore is intended to be managed to grow and continue in perpetuity 
and to stress long-term total return (income and capital gains) that is consistent with a moderate 
amount of short-term volatility risk of principal. As of December 2020, proceeds from the sale of church 
properties at Highland Park, Clifton Heights, Colfax, Albia, Pitzer, and Knox Knolls comprise the Living 
Legacy Fund.  
 
This policy is to provide guidelines on the investment of and the use of income from the Living Legacy 
Fund.  
 
Donor-restricted endowments – namely the Swan Fund, Walther Fund, and McCahon Fund – are not 
part of the Living Legacy Fund and shall be kept in separate accounts. The Committee on Living Legacy 
Fund will oversee the investment of donor-restricted endowments along with the Living Legacy Fund. 
However, in keeping with donor specifications, disbursement of grants from the Swan Fund will be in 
the purview of the Committee on Preparation for Ministry. Interest earnings from the Walther Fund 
shall be used at the discretion of the Camping and Youth Committee of the Presbytery for scholarship 
aid for children in need to attend youth conferences and activities. Interest earnings from the McCahon 
Fund shall be used at the discretion of the Commission on Ministry for the benefit of small 
congregations in south-central Iowa. 
 
Funding of the Living Legacy Fund 
Net proceeds from the sale of the real property of churches in the Presbytery shall ordinarily be deposited 
in the Living Legacy Fund.  
 
Congregations hold real property in trust (G-4.02). The Presbytery has exclusive power to determine the 
use and disposition of church property when a property ceases to be used for a particular church, and a 
dissolving congregation has the right to dispose of church property only as the Presbytery directs. The 
Presbytery will take seriously but not necessarily be bound by the desires of the Session of the dissolving 
congregation in the use of the assets.  
 
Churches continuing in ministry require Presbytery approval for the sale of real property. The disposition 
of net proceeds from the sale of real property also requires approval of the Presbytery. Primary 
consideration will be given to using the assets for future ministry, including the development of new 
congregations and the redevelopment of existing congregations. 
 



Presbytery of Des Moines Living Legacy Fund Policies 

2 
 

Use of the Living Legacy Fund 
For definition purposes, the term “investment” means any financial asset owned by the Presbytery of 
Des Moines that is not cash deposited with a FDIC insured institution (including Certificates of Deposit) 
or Money Market funds with assets guaranteed by the U.S. government.  
 

1. All investments will be held in accounts with institutions recommended by the Committee on 
Living Legacy Fund and approved by the Leadership Council.  

2. The Presbytery accepts a moderate level of investment risk. This precludes investments in high-
risk securities. This requires a balance asset allocation strategy to diversify risk.  

3. The Committee on Living Legacy Fund is responsible to review investment performance, risk, 
and advisor performance (after receipt of the quarterly statement from the Investment Advisor) 
and make recommendations for changes to the Leadership Council.  

4. The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will set aside each year a specified amount to be available 
for grants.  This amount will be 4.5% of the 12-quarter rolling average of the total market value 
of the fund. The first grant allocations will begin no sooner than one year after the funds are 
invested. 

4. The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will determine each year a specified amount to be available 
for grants and operating support.  This allocation will be up to 6% of the 12-quarter rolling average 
of the total market value of the fund beginning December 31, 2023 .  

5. Of the annual allocation, 50% will be distributed on a quarterly basis to the operating fund. 

6. Youth and Camping – 10% of the annual allocation will be available for camping and youth 
ministries of the presbytery. Additional funds for camping and youth ministries of the presbytery 
are available from the Walther Fund. These funds can be accumulated for up to three years to 
be used as scholarship for Presbyterian Youth Triennium. 

7. New Worshiping Communities  
25% of the annual allocation will be available to the New Worshiping Communities Committee 
with the approval of the Presbytery for use in starting and/or supporting new worshiping 
communities (Manual of Operations 13.5.). These funds can be accumulated for up to five years. 

 
 
Responsibilities for the Committee  
The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will oversee the assets of the Fund, new donations to the fund 
and the distribution of funds.  The Committee will manage the fund to conserve capital while obtaining 
returns that will enable the granting of funds to support requests using established criteria.  
 
The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will also oversee the investment of donor-restricted endowments 
such as Swan Fund, Walther Fund, and McCahon Fund. 
 



Presbytery of Des Moines Living Legacy Fund Policies 

3 
 

Management of the Account  
1. The principal of the fund will be managed by New Covenant Trust Company, subsidiary of the 

Presbyterian Foundation of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.).  

2. The social criteria for investing will be met, as much as is feasibly possible, by adhering to the 
General Assembly guidelines for social responsibility through investment. 

3. The Committee on Living Legacy Fund recommends that proceeds from the sale of church 
properties at Highland Park, Clifton Heights, Colfax, Albia, Pitzer, and Knox Knolls (which are 
currently in four different accounts) be combined into one account.  

 
Presbytery Reserve 
The Presbytery shall maintain at least $250,000 as reserve. In case of shortfall in presbytery cash, funds 
from this account shall be available on request of the Committee on Budget and Finance. Replenishment 
of the reserve account will not be from the Living Legacy Fund.  
 
Presbytery Emergency Funding 
Disbursements will not ordinarily be made from the Living Legacy Fund to the operating fund beyond 
the support listed above.  However, in extraordinary circumstances, the budget and finance committee 
may request that the committee on living legacy request approval of the Presbytery for a disbursement 
to the operating fund. 
 
Categories of Grants from the Living Legacy Fund  
1. Congregational Mission and Revitalization 

10% of the annual allocation will be available for grants for congregations or committees of the 
presbytery to be used for mission and witness activities or mission trips, or for grants for 
congregational revitalization. Grants for congregational revitalization will be made in consultation 
with the Commission on Ministry and are intended to enable and support initiatives toward 
congregational growth and vitality. Accordingly, these grants cannot be used for property repair or 
payment of loans and are not intended for cases in which long-term financial support is needed. 

 
2. Leadership Development Grants 

5% of the annual allocation will be available for grants for leadership development. Teaching elders 
and ruling elders pursuing ministry-related continuing education or theological education may apply 
for grants. (Additional funds are available for leadership development events through the Pastors’ 
Seminar Fund.) 

 
1. Congregational Revitalization Grants 

15% of the annual allocation will be available for grants for congregational revitalization. These grants 
will be made in consultation with the Commission on Ministry and are intended to enable and 
support initiatives toward congregational growth and vitality. Accordingly, these grants cannot be 



Presbytery of Des Moines Living Legacy Fund Policies 

4 
 

used for property repair or payment of loans and are not intended for cases in which long-term 
financial support is needed.  

 
2. Leadership Development Grants 

10% of the annual allocation will be available for grants for leadership development. Teaching elders 
and ruling elders pursuing ministry-related continuing education or theological education may apply 
for grants. (Additional funds are available for leadership development events through the Pastors’ 
Seminar Fund.) 

 
3. Mission Grants 

10% of the annual allocation will be available for grants for churches or committees of the presbytery 
to be used for mission activities or mission trips. 

 
4. Youth Ministries 

15% of the annual allocation will be available for camping and youth ministries of the presbytery. 
Additional funds for camping and youth ministries of the presbytery are available from the Walther 
Fund. These funds can be accumulated for up to three years to be used as scholarship for 
Presbyterian Youth Triennium. 

 
5. New Worshiping Communities 

50% of the annual allocation will be available to the new church development committee with the 
approval of the Presbytery for use in starting and supporting new worshiping communities (Manual of 
Operations 13.5.). These funds can be accumulated for up to five years.  

 
 
Procedure for Requesting Grants  

1. Funds may be requested through an application process established by the Committee on Living 
Legacy Fund. Application may be made by the session of a local congregation or a committee of 
the presbytery. Seminary student, teaching elders, and ruling elder may submit applications 
with the endorsement of the appropriate committee of the presbytery. 

1.2. The Living Legacy Fund Committee will accept applications for grants, evaluate them, and 
announce its decision in the Fall of each year. Checks will be issued in February of the following 
year. 

2.3. Congregations applying for a grant must have paid their per capita assessments, thus 
demonstrating their commitment to the unity and interdependence of the church and their 
commitment to strengthening the church’s witness to the mission of God (G-3.0106). 

3.4. Each application will establish the limit for funds to be requested.  

4.5. Normally application for funds will be for one time only per project.  

 
 



Presbytery of Des Moines Living Legacy Fund Policies 

5 
 

Review  
The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will review this policy at their first meeting every year. A 
recommendation for any changes or for confirmation of the policy without changes will be made to the 
Leadership Council and reported to the presbytery at its next regular meeting.  
 
 
Procedures for Soliciting, Receiving and Acknowledging Gifts  
The Living Legacy Fund may receive donations with restrictions from individuals or churches within the 
Presbytery.  
 
The Committee on Living Legacy Fund will develop a strategy for promoting the Living Legacy Fund 
within the bounds of the Presbytery of Des Moines. This might include but not be limited by some of the 
following:  

a. Developing and sending promotional materials to the churches in the presbytery.  

b. Promoting the Living Legacy Fund as a possible recipient of the Wills Emphasis Program.  

c. The Committee on Living Legacy Fund might meet with individual donors or sessions to explain 
the options available.   

d. Unrestricted donations are always preferred in the interest of administering funds more 
effectively.  

e. Donations below $10,000 are not eligible for separate-account treatment.  

 
  



Presbytery of Des Moines Living Legacy Fund Policies

6

Committee is responsible for distributing the 
annual income available from investments.

Applications for grants can be found on 
Presbytery of Des Moines’ website under 

Resources.

LIVING LEGACY COMMITTEE
The committee is responsible to oversee the investment of all unrestricted and donor-restricted 

funds.   Their purpose, policies and procedures can be found in Manual of Operations (MOO), 
Section 13.11.

                      All unrestricted funds from past and future sale of church
               properties will be combined to make up the LIVING LEGACY FUND.

                50%
              Grants

DONOR-RESTRICTED FUNDS
Each committee below is responsible for distribution of that fund.

Swan Fund
This is designated for 
seminary student’s

assistance.

Walther Fund
This provides scholarship aid 

for children in need to 
attend youth conferences

and activities.

McCahon Fund
This provides funds for 

the benefit of small 
congregations in south-

central Iowa.

Committee on
Preparation for Ministry
Their purpose, policies 
and procedures can be 
found in MOO, section 

13.4.

Camping and Youth 
Committee

Their purpose, policies and 
procedures can be found in 

MOO, section 13.6.

Commission on Ministry
Their purpose, policies 
and procedures can be 
found in MOO, section 

13.3.

                50%
Operating Fund



Presbytery of Des Moines
Statement of Financial Activities d f h c
9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Presbytery 9/30/2024 9/30/2024 12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Operating Income 4001 Op. Support: Per capita $5,029 $158,879 $225,860 $209,601

4003 Op. Support: Synod $0 $6,667 $10,000 $10,000
4004 Op. Support: Donations $0 $0 $0 $0
4005 Op. Support: Interest $112 $1,207 $0 $2,516
4007 Op. Support: Inv. Earnings $0 $0 $0 $0
4010 Op. Support: Sales (net) $0 $0 $0 $0
4013 Op. Support: Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0
4014 Op. Support: Other tbd Nov '23: refund from UPP for shared staff $0 $0 $0 $69,450
4015 Op. Support: Park Ave Endowment PCF distribution to West Bank acct $0 $299 $0 $355

No distribution yet this year. Swan Fund Distribution?
Designated for seminary student's 
assistance. CPM responsible for distribution.

No distribution yet this year. McCahon Fund Distribution?

Funds for the benefit of small congregations 
in south-central Iowa. COM responsible for 
distribution.

Total Operating Revenues $5,141 $167,051 $235,860 $292,568

Operating Expenses 5001 Per Capita to GA $4,010 $36,088 $48,584 $50,767
5002 Per Capita to Synod $2,261 $20,346 $27,128 $28,347
5102 Committee Preparation Ministry $0 $0 $1,000 $954
5104 Permanent Judicial Commission $0 $0 $100 $0
5105 Investigating Comm. $0 $0 $100 $0
5106 Leadership Council $0 $74 $100 $103
5110 Committee on Ministry $241 $1,366 $14,000 $3,680
5109 Property Committee $0 $0 $100 $0
5107 New Worship Communities Comm. $0 $0 $0 $1,447
5112 Nominating Committee $0 $0 $100 $0
5113 Administrative Commissions $0 $0 $100 $0
5115 Presbytery Meetings $0 $454 $2,000 $1,041
5201 Insurance $282 $2,816 $10,000 $5,090
5202 Bank Charges $0 $0 $50 $54
5205 Legal Fees $0 $0 $1,000 $0
5206 Audit/Review $0 $0 $2,500 $7,972
5207 Accounting fees $500 $4,500 $6,000 $9,316
5208 Finance charges $0 $0 $0 $57
5250 Shared Services: UPP $24,054 $216,486 $288,767 $282,989

Total Operating Expenses $31,347 $282,225 $402,629 $392,961
Operating Net Surplus (Deficit) ($26,206) ($115,174) ($166,769) ($100,393)

1 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Presbytery Missions
Mission Income 4002 Op. Support: Presby mission $0 $26,851 $40,000 $44,731

4104 Desig. Support: Michelson Endowment

For new church development and re-
development in Des Moines metro area; 
Need a restricted fund for unspent 
dollars? $0 $1,189 $0 $1,527

4115 Pastors' Seminar End. Income PCF distribution to West Bank acct $0 $331 $0 $398

No distribution yet this year. Walther Fund Distribution?

Provides scholarship aid for children in 
need to attend youth conferences and 
activities. Camping and Youth 
committee responsible for distribution. 
Could be used for whatever is not 
covered by Living Legacy.

Total Mission Income $0 $28,371 $40,000 $46,656

Mission Expenses 5301 Committee of PSR $0 $0 $2,000 $1,010
5302 CROSS $0 $0 $0 $5,600
5303 First Arabic Support $0 $11,250 $15,000 $7,200
5304 OSP Support $0 $0 $0 $5,600
5305 Two Rivers $0 $0 $0 $0
5306 Camping Scholarships $0 $0 $0 $2,998
5307 Camp Rental $0 $4,296 $0 $773
5308 Camp Activity Fees $0 $0 $0 $1,715
5309 Camp Transportation $0 $0 $0 $0
5310 Camp Meals $0 $0 $0 $3,060
5311 Camp Supplies & Materials $0 $0 $0 $0
5312 Camp other Expenses $0 $0 $0 $84
5313 Camp Registrations $0 ($6,750) $0 ($4,150)
5314 Triennium Support $0 $0 $0 $0
5315 Youth Mission $0 $0 $0 $0
5316 UPP Shared Staff: Mission $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Mission Expenses $0 $8,796 $17,000 $23,890

Mission Net Surplus (Deficit) $0 $19,575 $23,000 $22,766

Operations & Missions Combined Net YE Transfer to Prior Years' Surplus ($26,206) ($95,598) ($143,769) ($77,626)

2 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Net Assets  - Receipts added
4701 Desig. Receipts: Commissions $0 $0 $0 $0
4702 Desig.Receipts: Living Legacy Additional funds to PCF $0 $21,530 $0 $0
4703 Desig. Receipts: General $0 $0 $0 $0
4704 Desig. Receipts: Disaster $0 $0 $0 $0
4705 Desig. Receipts: tbd $0 $0 $0 $0
4801 Rest. Income: Presby Des $0 $0 $0 $0
4802 Rest. Income: Life IncTrust $0 $0 $0 $0
4803 Rest. Income: Disaster $0 $7,476 $0 $0
4804 Rest. Income: Mental Hlth $0 $0 $0 $0
4805 Rest. Income: Cents Ability $0 $0 $0 $0
4806 Rest. Income: Peacemaking Remittance/offering $105 $1,489 $0 $1,819
4807 Rest. Income: Two Rivers $0 $0 $0 $0
4808 Rest. Income: Harvest Remittance/offering $0 $2,780 $0 $1,570
4809 Rest. Inc: tbd (formerly Harvest Intl) $0 $0 $0 $0
4810 Rest. Income: Swan Fund Remittance/offering $389 $389 $0 $902
4811 Rest. Income: McCahon $0 $0 $0 $0
4812 Rest. Income: Walther $0 $0 $0 $0
4813 Rest. Income: New Worship $0 $0 $0 $0
4814 Rest. Income: Youth $0 $0 $0 $0
4815 Rest. Income: Pastors' Sem. Endow. $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Net Asset Receipts added $494 $33,664 $0 $4,291
Net Assets - Distributions/Payments

5701 Desig. Spending: Commissions $0 $0 $0 $0

5702 Desig. Spending: Living Legacy
Distribution from PCF to DMP; Rec'd 
distribution for 2024 grants in 2023 $0 $0 $0 $78,800

5703 Desig. Spending: General $0 $0 $0 $0
5704 Desig. Spending: Disaster $0 $0 $0 $0
5705 Desig. Spending: Presb. Offer. $0 $0 $0 $0
5801 Rest. Spending: Presby Des $0 $0 $0 $0
5802 Rest. Spending: Life Income $0 $0 $0 $0
5803 Rest. Spending: Disaster $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0
5804 Rest. Spending: Mental Hlth $0 $0 $0 $0
5805 Rest. Spending: Cents Ability DMP payment $0 $0 $0 $190
5806 Rest. Spending: Peacemaking DMP payment $105 $2,753 $0 $2,000
5807 Rest. Spending: Two Rivers $0 $0 $0 $0
5808 Rest. Spending: Harvest DMP payment $0 $0 $0 $6,310
5809 Rest. Spending: tbd (formerly Harvest Intl) $0 $0 $0 $0
5810 Rest. Spending: Swan $0 $0 $0 $0

3 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

5811 Rest. Spending: McCahon DMP payment $0 $0 $0 $500
5812 Rest. Spending: Walther $0 $0 $0 $0
5813 Rest. Spending: New Worship $0 $0 $0 $0
5814 Rest. Spending: Youth $0 $0 $0 $0
5815 Rest. Spending: Pastors' Sem. End. $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Net Asset Distributions/Payments $5,105 $7,753 $0 $87,800

Net Asset Income (deficit) YE Transfer to (from) Net Assets ($4,611) $25,912 $0 ($83,509)

Living Legacy

Living Legacy Income 4101 Desig. Support: Living Leg Grants
Distribution from Net Asset; rec'd 
distribution for 2024 grants in 2023 $0 $0 $0 $31,300

4103 Desig. Support: LL Youth
Distribution from Net Asset; rec'd 
distribution for 2024 grants in 2023 $0 $0 $0 $16,500

4102 Desig. Support: LL New Worship
Distribution from Net Asset; rec'd 
distribution for 2024 grants in 2023 $0 $0 $0 $31,000

Total Living Legacy Revenues $0 $0 $0 $78,800
Living Legacy Expenses

5320 Living Legacy (Revitalization) Distribution Spending $0 $0 $0 $0

5321 Living Legacy (Leadership) Distribution Spending $0 $7,500 $0 $8,100

5322 Living Legacy (Mission) Distribution Spending $0 $14,200 $0 $1,500

5323 Living Legacy (Youth) Distribution Spending $0 $0 $0 $7,200

5324 Living Legacy (New Worshiping) Distribution Spending $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Living Legacy Expenses $0 $21,700 $0 $16,800

Living Legacy Net Surplus (Deficit) YE Transfer to LL Net Asset $0 ($21,700) $0 $62,000

4 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Investments 4601 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Walther Fund YTD Gains/Losses $2,518 $4,911 $0 $5,254

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Walther YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $2,518 $4,911 $0 $5,254

4602 Unrealized Gains (Losses): McCahon Fund YTD Gains/Losses $5,246 $10,230 $0 $10,946

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): McCahon YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $5,246 $10,230 $0 $10,946

4603 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Swan Fund YTD Gains/Losses $2,969 $5,814 $0 $6,230

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Swan YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $2,969 $5,814 $0 $6,230

4604 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Living Leg YTD Gains/Losses $196,882 $381,779 $0 $349,780

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Liv. Legacy YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $196,882 $381,779 $0 $349,780

4605 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Life Inc YTD Gains/Losses $0 $0 $0 $0

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Life Inc. YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $0 $0 $0

4606 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Pastors Sem YTD Gains/Losses $0 $0 $0 $0

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Pastors' Sem YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $0 $0 $0

4607 Unrealized Gains (Losses): Other YTD Gains/Losses $0 $0 $0 $0

YTD Net Surplus (Deficit): Other YE Transfer to Fund Net Asset $0 $0 $0

Combined YTD Surplus (Deficit) $207,614 $402,734 $0 $372,209

Non-operating 4401 Property Received: Easton $0 $0 $0 $0

4411 Property Income: Easton $0 $0 $0 $0

5401 Property Cost: Easton $0 $0 $0 $0

4200 Income: Gain/Loss Asset Sale $0 $0 $0 ($1,806)

Transfer of Proceeds: Easton

Net Surplus (Deficit): Easton $0 $0 $0 ($1,806)

4402 Property Received: Park Ave. $0 $0 $0 $0

4412 Property Income: Park Ave. $0 $0 $0 $0

5402 Property Cost: Park Ave. $0 $0 $0 $8,508

Gain/Loss on Sale: Park Ave.

Transfer of Proceeds: Park Ave.

Net Surplus (Deficit): Park Ave. $0 $0 $0 ($8,508)

Combined Non-operating Net YE Transfer to Prior Years' Surplus $0 $0 $0 ($10,314)

5 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Remittances: Pass-throughs
Remittance Receipts 4501 Receipts: GA mission $0 $24,688 $0 $44,304

4502 Receipts: Synod mission $0 $11,793 $0 $19,034
4503 Receipts: One Great Hour $0 $32,543 $0 $28,365
4504 Receipts: GA Peacemaking $214 $3,023 $0 $3,693
4505 Receipts: Christmas Joy $0 $14,605 $0 $7,571
4506 Receipts: Pentecost $633 $4,219 $0 $5,266
4507 Receipts: Theological Ed. $0 $1,250 $0 $1,250
4508 Receipts: First Arabic Ch $0 $24 $0 $0
4509 Receipts: GA Desig. & Hunger $0 $258 $0 $2,306
4510 Receipts: GA Disaster Relief $0 $2,650 $0 $3,327
4511 Receipts: Harvest Offer $0 $0 $0 $0
4512 Receipts: Harvest Intl. $0 $0 $0 $0
4513 Receipts: OSP $0 $0 $0 $0
4514 Receipts: (tbd) $0 $1,304 $0 $490

Total Remittance Receipts $847 $96,356 $0 $115,606
Remittance Transfers 5501 Transfer: GA Mission 2501 $0 $24,688 $0 $44,304

5502 Transfer: Synod Mission 2502 $0 $11,793 $0 $19,034
5503 Transfer: One Great Hour2503 $0 $32,543 $0 $28,365
5504 Transfer: GA Peacemaking 2504 $214 $3,023 $0 $3,693
5505 Transfer: Christmas Joy 2505 $0 $14,605 $0 $7,571
5506 Transfer: Pentecost 2506 $633 $4,219 $0 $5,266
5507 Transfer: Theological Ed. 2507 $0 $1,250 $0 $1,250
5508 Transfer: First Arabic 2508 $0 $24 $0 $0
5509 Transfer: GA Des & Hunger 2509 $0 $258 $0 $2,306
5510 Transfer: GA Disaster 2510 $0 $2,650 $0 $3,327
5511 Transfer: Harvest Local 2511 $0 $0 $0 $0
5512 Transfer: Harvest Intl 2512 $0 $0 $0 $0
5513 Transfer: Pass-thru tbd $0 $0 $0 $0
5514 Transfer: Pass-thru tbd $0 $1,304 $0 $490

Total Remittance Transfers $847 $96,356 $0 $115,606

Receipts Net of Transfers
All receipts clear to Pass-through 
Payables each month $0 $0 $0 $0

6 of 7



9/30/2024

9

MTD Actual
(This Yr)

YTD Actual
(This Yr)

Annual 
Budget

(This Yr)

Total Actual
(Prior Yr)

Consolidated Presbytery Operations Net ($26,206) ($115,174) ($166,769) ($100,393)

Presbytery Missions Net $0 $19,575 $23,000 $22,766

Net Asset Net ($4,611) $25,912 $0 ($83,509)

Living Legacy Net $0 ($21,700) $0 $62,000

Investments Net $207,614 $402,734 $0 $372,209

Non-operating Net $0 $0 $0 ($10,314)

Pass-throughs Net $0 $0 $0 $0

Consolidated Net $176,798 $311,347 ($143,769) $262,760

7 of 7



Presbytery of Des Moines
Statement of Financial Position k f

9/30/2024 Beginning of Year Current Yr. Unallocated
1/1/2024 9/30/2024 YTD Earnings

Assets Current Assets 1001 Checking: UCB $329,967 $232,118

1002 Checking: WB $81,584 $83,404

1201 Account Receivable $3,623 $0

1207 Prepaid Expense $0 $0

1209 Undeposited Cash $0 $0

$415,173 $315,522

Investments 1301 Investments: Walther Fund $40,598 $45,509
1302 Investments: McCahon Fund $84,575 $94,805

1303 Investments: Swan Fund $47,844 $53,658

1304 Investments: Living Legacy Fnd $3,210,029 $3,591,808

1305 Investments: Life Inc Char $1,411 $1,411

1306 Pastors' Seminar Endowment $22,298 $22,298

1315 Investments: Due from Others $0 $0

$3,406,755 $3,809,489
Total Assets $3,821,928 $4,125,011

Liabilities Operating Payables 2001 Accts. Payable: GA Per Capita $0 $0

2002 A/P: Synod per capita $2,362 $2,261

2003 Accts. Payable: General $229 $0

2004 A/P Synod Accting Fees $500 $500

2005 Accts. Payable: tbd $0 $0

$3,092 $2,761

Pass-through Balances 2501 Pass-thru: GA Mission $2,936 $0

2502 Pass-thru: Synod Mission $1,421 $0

2503 Pass-thru: One Great Hour $0 $0

2504 Pass-thru: GA Peacemaking $259 $214
2505 Pass-thru: Christmas Joy $565 $0

2506 Pass-thru: Pentecost $40 $633

2507 Pass-thru: Theol Educ $0 $0

2508 Pass-thru: First Arabic $0 $0

2509 Pass-thru: GA Des & Hunger $30 $0

2510 Pass-thru: GA Disaster $241 $0

2511 Pass-thru: tbd $0 $0

2512 Pass-thru: tbd $0 $0

2513 Pass-thru: (tbd) $0 $0

2514 Pass-thru: (tbd) $0 $0

$5,492 $847

Total Liabilities $8,583 $3,607

1 of 2



Presbytery of Des Moines
Statement of Financial Position k f

9/30/2024 Beginning of Year Current Yr. Unallocated
1/1/2024 9/30/2024 YTD Earnings

Net Assets Equity 3000 Year-to-Date Unalloc. Earnings $0 $311,347

3100 Prior Years' Unrest Net Assets $324,879 $321,485 ($95,930)

$324,879 $632,833

Designated Net Assets 3701 Desig. Net Assets: Commissions $0 $0 $0

3702 Desig. Net Assets: Living Leg $3,272,029 $3,272,029 $381,609

$3,272,029 $3,272,029

Restricted Net Assets 3801 Rest Net Assets: Presby Desig. $3,268 $3,268 $0

3802 Rest Net Assets: Life Inc Trst $1,411 $1,411 $0

3803 Rest Net Assets: Disaster $150 $150 $2,476

3804 Rest Net Assets: Mental Hlth $4,902 $4,902 $0

3805 Rest Net Assets: Cents Ability ($0) ($0) $0

3806 Rest Net Assets: Peacemaking $8,945 $9,050 ($1,264)

3807 Rest Net Assets: Two Rivers $122 $122 $0

3808 Rest Net Assets: Harvest $1,668 $1,668 $2,780

3809 Rest NA: tbd (formerly Harvest Intl) $0 $0 $0

3810 Rest. Net Assets: Swan $43,746 $43,746 $6,203

3811 Rest. Net Assets: McCahon $84,075 $84,075 $10,230

3812 Rest. Net Assets: Walther $40,598 $40,598 $4,911

3813 Rest. Net Assets: New Worship $368 $368 $0

3814 Rest. NA: Youth Fund $0 $0 $0

3815 Rest. NA: Pastors' Seminar Fund $12,185 $12,185 $331

3816 Rest. Net Assets: tbd $0 $0

3817 Rest. Net Assets: tbd $0 $0

$201,437 $201,542

Permanent Net Assets 3901 Perm. NA: Pastors' Seminar End. $10,000 $10,000 $0

3902 Perm. Net Assets: Swan $5,000 $5,000 $0

$15,000 $15,000

Total Net Assets $3,813,345 $4,121,404

Total Liabilities & Net Assets $3,821,928 $4,125,011

2 of 2



Presbytery of Des Moines 
2025 Budget Proposal 

 2024
Jan - Jul 

 2024
Annual
Budget 

 2025
Proposed

Budget 

 Diff Diff
%

Operating Income 4001 Op. Support: Per capita 144,270 225,860 228,211 2,351 1%
4003 Op. Support: Synod 5,833 10,000 10,000 - 0%
4004 Op. Support: Donations - - - - 0%
4005 Op. Support: Interest 974 - - - 0%
4007 Op. Support: Living Legacy Operating Support - - 83,065 83,065 0%
4010 Op. Support: Sales (net) - - - - 0%
4013 Op. Support: Miscellaneous - - - - 0%
4014 Op. Support: Other tbd - - - - 0%
4015 Op. Support: Park Ave Endowment 299 - - - 0%

Total Operating Revenues 151,377 235,860 321,275 85,415 36%

Operating Expenses 5001 Per Capita to GA 28,069 48,584 51,989 3,405 7%
5002 Per Capita to Synod 15,825 27,128 26,378 (750) -3%
5102 Committee Preparation Ministry - 1,000 1,000 - 0%
5104 Permanent Judicial Commission - 100 100 - 0%
5105 Investigating Comm. - 100 100 - 0%
5106 Leadership Council 74 100 100 - 0%
5110 Committee on Ministry 1,125 14,000 5,000 (9,000) -64%
5109 Property Committee - 100 100 - 0%
5107 New Worship Communities Comm. - - - - 0%
5112 Nominating Committee - 100 100 - 0%
5113 Administrative Commissions - 100 100 - 0%
5115 Presbytery Meetings 454 2,000 2,000 - 0%
5201 Insurance 2,253 10,000 10,000 - 0%
5202 Bank Charges - 50 50 - 0%
5205 Legal Fees - 1,000 1,000 - 0%
5206 Audit/Review - 2,500 2,500 - 0%
5207 Accounting fees 3,500 6,000 6,000 - 0%
5208 Finance charges - - - - 0%
5250 Shared Services: UPP 168,378 288,767 257,542 (31,225) -11%

Total Operating Expenses 219,772 402,629 364,059 (38,570) -10%
Operating Net Surplus (Deficit) (68,395) (166,769) (42,784) 123,985 -74%

1



Presbytery of Des Moines 
2025 Budget Proposal 

 2024
Jan - Jul 

 2024
Annual
Budget 

 2025
Proposed

Budget 

 Diff Diff
%

Mission Income 4002 Op. Support: Presby mission 23,010 40,000 40,000 - 0%
4104 Desig. Support: Michelson Endowment 1,189 - - 0%
4115 Pastors' Seminar End. Income 331 - - 0%

Total Mission Income 24,531 40,000 40,000 - 0%

Mission Expenses 5301 Committee of PSR - 2,000 500 (1,500) -75%
5303 First Arabic Support 7,500 15,000 - (15,000) -100%
5305 Two Rivers - - - - 0%
5306 Camping Scholarships - - - - 0%
5307 Camp Expenses (rename) 4,296 - - - 0%
5314 Triennium Support - - 1,000 1,000 100%
5315 Youth Mission - - - - 0%
5316 UPP Shared Staff: Mission - - - - 0%
**** Support for Mission Executive Presbyter 37,000 37,000 0%

Total Mission Expenses 5,046 17,000 38,500 21,500 126%
Mission Net Surplus (Deficit) 19,485 23,000 1,500 (21,500) -93%

Total Net Surplus (Deficit) (48,910) (143,769) (41,284) 102,485 -71%
Total Net Surplus (Deficit) as % of Revenues -28% -52% -11%

Notes
Living Legacy Operating Support is set at 1/2 of the approved distribution amount of 12 quarter average principal. This will be reviewed annualy.
Total UPP cost is 294,542.  This is paid partially by the Mission budget for our Mission Presbyter.
The following are funded by Living Legacy rather than the operating budget:

First Arabic Congregation
Youth Missions
Youth Camping
New Worshipping Communities

2



Presbytery of Des Moines 
2025 Budget Proposal 

Per Capita projections include a discount of 12%, or (20,233) due to historical non-payment of dues by congregations.
The following churches pdid not participate in Per Capita in 2023 and have not made any contributions in 2024:

Congregation Due
Allerton 3,750 
Brooklyn 2,400 
Diagonal 1,200 
Malcom 1,200 
Monroe 4,500 
Ottumwa - First 6,300 
Total  19,350 

3



September 30, 2024 
 
GREETINGS in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ, 
 
I’m writing this to you, the members of the Presbytery of Des Moines, Prospect Hill and 
North Central Iowa to commend your Stated Clerk, Annika Lister-Stroope.  
 
The 2023 minutes were not presented at the May Clerk Review and thus have not been 
read. I need to report at the October 6, 2024 meeting about the reading of the 
Presbytery minutes so this will be reported. However, I know that Annika is working on 
getting them read. So once they are read, then the action can be reported at the next 
Synod meeting. 
 
I want to commend Annika for her diligent and faithful work. If you have any 
questions/concerns, please let me know. 
 
In Christ, 
Rev. Pamela Prouty 
Stated Clerk, Synod of Lakes and Prairies 
 
 

2115 Cliff Drive Eagan, MN 55122 – 651-357-1142 – pprouty@lakesandprairies.org 











https://www.presbyterianmission.org/resource/gods-work-our-hands-employment-community/






https://www.pensions.org/file/what-we-offer/benefits-guidance/forms-documents/Documents/pln-103.pdf/
https://www.pensions.org/file/what-we-offer/benefits-guidance/forms-documents/Documents/pln-103.pdf/


https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/employer-guidance/effective-salary
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/employer-guidance/effective-salary




https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr/fmrs/FY2024_code/select_Geography.odn


https://www.irs.gov/tax-professionals/standard-mileage-rates




https://seasonofrebuilding.pensions.org/2025-plan-changes/dues-packages
https://seasonofrebuilding.pensions.org/2025-plan-changes/dues-packages
https://seasonofrebuilding.pensions.org/2025-plan-changes/dues-packages
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer


https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/retirement/pension
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/retirement/retirement-savings
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/death-disability
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/term-life


https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/temporary-disability
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/long-term-disability
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/supplemental-death
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/financial-protection/supplemental-death
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/medical
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/medical
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/dental
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/vision-eyewear


https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/medical/employee-assistance
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/health/medicare-advantage
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/tax-advantaged-accounts/flexible-spending-accounts
https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/tax-advantaged-accounts/flexible-spending-accounts


https://www.pensions.org/what-we-offer/tax-advantaged-accounts/hsa






















https://www.presbyterianmission.org/resource/gods-work-our-hands-employment-community/
https://www.presbyterianmission.org/resource/gods-work-our-hands-employment-community/
https://www.presbyterianmission.org/wp-content/uploads/5-collective_bargaining_policy-2008.pdf
https://www.presbyterianmission.org/wp-content/uploads/5-collective_bargaining_policy-2008.pdf

